
 
 
 
 

City of Woodstock 
Office of the City Manager 

Phone (815) 338-4301   Fax (815) 334-2269 
citymanager@woodstockil.gov 

www.woodstockil.gov 
121 W. Calhoun Street          Roscoe C. Stelford III  
Woodstock, Illinois 60098         City Manager 
 

                       WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 

March 18, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

                                 

Any Person Wishing to Address the City Council 

Must Approach the Podium, be Recognized by the 

   Mayor, and Provide Their Name and Address for the Record 

   
The proceedings of the City Council meeting are being audio-recorded only 

to aid in the preparations of the Minutes and are not retained as part of the 

permanent records of the City. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

 

ROLL CALL: 

          

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION: Purple Heart Resolution-Adoption of a Resolution     
                                               designating the City of Woodstock a Purple Heart City. 
 

 

Anyone wishing to address the Council on an item not already on the agenda may do 
so at this time. 

1. Public Comments 
2. Council Comments    

                   
CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 

no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 

Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 

a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 

member of the City Council for separate action.) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Woodstock City Council  
March 18, 2014 
Page Two 

 
    

B.       MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
           March 4, 2014 Regular Meeting 
           March 4, 2014 Executive Session 
  
  

C.       WARRANTS:   3607      3608    
 
 

 

D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Police Department Report – February 2014 
 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes – November 12, 2013 
  

  
  
  
E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 19 
 

1.  Board and Commission Appointment – Transportation Com- 
 mission– Approval of the nomination of Jason Osborn to the Trans- 
 portation Commission.  

   

 
 2.    Sign Variation – 126 N. Benton Street – Adoption of an Ordinance       

                                            authorizing a variance of the City of Woodstock Unified Development    
                                            Ordinance to allow the installation of a project sign utilizing existing      
                                            brackets. 

 
3.     Safe Routes to School Agreements –Approval of the following:  
 a.)  A Local Agency Agreement for Federal participation for the Safe 

          Routes to Schools Project. 
 b.) A Construction Engineering Services Agreement for the           

          construction of a sidewalk on the west side of Dean Street. 
 

             4.     Change Order #1-#3 -Old Courthouse Dome and Roof Restoration 

                     – Adoption of a Resolution authorizing Change Orders #1, #2, and #3   
                    for the Old Courthouse Dome and Roof Restoration.    

 
  5. Change Order #4 - Old Courthouse Dome and Roof Restoration – 

Adoption of a Resolution authorizing Change Order #4 for the Old 
Courthouse Dome and Roof Restoration. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(19a) 
 
 
 
 
(19b)(Doc.1) 
 
 
 
 
(19c) 
(Doc.2) 
 
(Doc.3) 
 
 
(19d)(Doc.4) 
 
 
 
(19e)(Doc.5) 

 
 
 
 



Woodstock City Council  
March 18, 2014 
Page Three 

 
 
 
 6.  Award of Contract – Installation of Lightning Protection on the        

Old Courthouse – Approval to waive competitive bids and award of     
contract to Renaissance Restoration for the installation of lightning        
protection on the Old Courthouse. 

 
 7. Award of Contract – Well #11 – Approval to waive competitive bids 

and award of contract to Layne Christensen for the rehabilitation of 
Well #11. 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
 
  8.   Transmittal of FY14/15 Budget 
 
  9.   Community Celebration Event 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 

ADJOURN  
 

 
 

NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), this 

and all other City Council meetings are located in facilities that are physically 

accessible to those who have disabilities.  If additional reasonable 

accommodations are needed, please call the City Manager’s Office at 815/338-

4301  at least 72 hours prior to any meeting so that accommodations can be made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
(19f) 
 
 
 
 
(19g) 
 
 
 
 
 
(19h) 
 
(19i) 
 
 
 
 
 



 

       City of    
               
 
Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  
Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  C i ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  
121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  
 
 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cindy Smiley, Executive Assistant 
 
DATE:  March 11, 2014 
 
RE:  PURPLE HEART CITY 

 
 
As stated in the attached Resolution, in 1782 General George Washington created the Badge of 
Military Merit to honor the common soldier.  This award, which evolved into the Purple Heart, is 
the oldest military decoration in use today. 
 
In 2008 through the efforts of a group of veterans who raised private funds, a Purple Heart 
Memorial was erected in the Park in the Square, at that time the only such memorial in McHenry 
County.   
 
In 2012, the State of Illinois recognized the courage and service of Purple Heart recipients and 
their families by creating Purple Heart Day which is to be observed every August 7, the date 
upon which in 1782 General Washington issued the general order establishing the award.  The 
City of Woodstock was honored to be the location for the observance of the first Purple Heart 
Day in Illinois on August 7, 2012. 
 
The City now has the opportunity to once again honor and recognize Purple Heart recipients and 
their families by adopting the attached resolution which would recognize the City as a Purple 
Heart City, the first City in McHenry County to do so.   
 
If Council is supportive of establishing the City of Woodstock as a Purple Heart City, 

approval is recommended for Resolution 14-R-05, attached. 
 

rstelford
Approved



 

RESOLUTION NO. 14 – R – 05 

RECOGNIZING THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

AS A  

PURPLE HEART CITY 
 
WHEREAS, the Purple Heart evolved from the Badge of Military Merit created in 1782 for the 
common soldier by General George Washington and is the oldest military decoration in use today; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Purple Heart is awarded to members of the United States Armed Forces that have 
been wounded or killed in combat with a declared enemy of the United States of America; and 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of the Military Order of the Purple Heart is to foster an environment of 
goodwill among the combat wounded veterans and their families, promote patriotism, support 
legislative initiatives, and most importantly, make sure we never forget; and 
 
WHEREAS, members participate in every patriotic community event and volunteer their time and 
personal history to students within the City of Woodstock; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock is proud to be the site of the first Purple Heart Memorial in 
McHenry County, it having occupied a place of honor in our historic Woodstock Square since 2008; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the first official Purple Heart Day in the State of Illinois was commemorated in the City 
of Woodstock on August 7, 2012, featuring the State of Illinois Movable Memorial Wall of Honor; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, we appreciate the sacrifices our Purple Heart recipients have made in defending our 
freedom and believe it is important that we acknowledge them for their courage and show them the 
support they have earned, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Woodstock does 
hereby recognize the City of Woodstock as a PURPLE HEART CITY, the first in McHenry 
County, and asks our citizens to continue to honor and support our military veteran population. 
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council this 18th day of March, 2014. 

 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 

Brian Sager, Ph.D. 
Mayor 

Attest: 
_____________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

March 4, 2014 
City Council Chambers 

 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Brian 
Sager on Tuesday, March 4, 2014 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  He explained the consent 
calendar process and invited public participation.  
 
A roll call was taken.   
  
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Julie Dillon, Maureen Larson, Mayor Brian Sager, Mark 
Saladin, Joseph Starzynski, RB Thompson 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Michael Turner 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Finance Director 
Paul Christensen, Economic Development Director Cort Carlson, Human Resource Director Deb 
Schober, Human Resources Coordinator Terry Willcockson, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, 
Chief of Police Robert Lowen, Deputy City Clerk Cindy Smiley 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 
 
FLOOR DISCUSSION:   

 

Public Comments 

Mike Ortmann, 3525 Castle Rd., Woodstock stated that he owns Red Iron Tavern and he questioned 
why the City is plowing Highway 120 and blasting his sidewalk with snow since it is a State 
highway.  He advised that he can’t get any answers from Public Works. He reported that the other 
day he saw a City truck salting Rt. 120 even though he read in the Independent that the City is trying 
to conserve salt.  He stated that he called Public Works and talked to Jane who advised that they 
aren’t supposed to be doing that so he is questioning why they are doing it. 
 
R. Stelford stated that he would have to check into it advising that it is the first he has heard of it.  M. 
Ortmann advised that he has it all on videotape.  R. Stelford stated that it would be beneficial and that 
they would be glad to take a look at it.  He noted that they shouldn’t be plowing nor salting Rt. 120 
because it is a State highway.  
 
Mayor Sager stated that he appreciates the point M. Ortmann is making because there is snow being 
splashed on the public way in front of his business.  He acknowledged that it is a significant problem 
for M. Ortmann noting that they will have to investigate whether or not it was Public Works.  He 
stated that it is next to impossible to avoid putting snow in front of people’s driveways or to control 
totally where the salt goes.  He stated that he isn’t diminishing the impact it has on M. Ortmann but 
he advised that there is an expectation from residents and businesses that the roadways are clear.  He 
reiterated that it doesn’t negate M. Ortmann’s concerns.   
 
M. Ortmann stated that at the beginning of winter he asked Staff why the snow is being piled up on 
his curb along Clay St. and not cleaned up.  He advised that he received the answer that they only do 
it four times a year during the season.  He reported that he had to use his own plow truck and plow in 
front of his building to get the snow away from it.  He reported that he called N. Baker and advised 
that he is shoveling his own sidewalk and asked that the City at least get rid of the big pile of snow 
between Church and Clay; which it was then finally taken care of.  Mayor Sager invited M. Ortmann 
to call Roscoe or himself for help in addressing his issues. 



Woodstock City Council 
3/4/14 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Council Comments 

RB Thompson stated that Harold Ramis died since Council’s last meeting and he noted that he had 
an economic impact on Woodstock that still lives and will continue to live.  He reported that 
Woodstock got a lot of good press as Groundhog Day was mentioned as the apex of his career.   
 
RB Thompson reported that today is the 100th birthday of Bob Wilson who was a citizen of 
Woodstock.  He stated that he built the bomb and Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory in Batavia.  
He noted that he attended school at Todd School for Boys. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

Motion by J. Dillon, second by RB Thompson to concur with Consent Agenda Items A-D6. 
 
Mayor Sager advised that as a point of clarification there were scrivener errors made and noted that 
on Item D3 Liquor Amendment – BYOB License the reference in the document in the initial packet 
that was distributed was to Item 3.3.19c but it should be a reference to 3.6b.  He advised that the 
other scrivener error is on Item D6 Purchase – Police Vehicles noting that the request is to purchase 
four replacement vehicles and not three.  Mayor Sager asked R. Schlossberg to verify that they are 
scrivener errors and that the public has been properly notified in terms of the meeting and R. 
Schlossberg advised that the agenda sufficiently notifies the public of the subject matter. 
 

 In reference to Item D6, M. Saladin stated that it is important to note that the cost is not 
changing because of the reference from three to four. 

 In reference to Item D1, RB Thompson questioned if Ryan O’Conner was the person who 
showed them around Other World Computing and Mayor Sager affirmed.  

 In reference to D2, RB Thompson stated that Ryder’s Woods has had a poor reputation for a 
number of years but this project is really opening it up and making it more enticing to the 
public with its cleanliness and removal of invasive plants.  Mayor Sager expressed 
appreciation for the ongoing volunteer efforts of clearing underlying species of plants from 
the main plants. He stated that it has been very positive noting that the grant opportunity will 
complement and advance the overall project.  He thanked the volunteers who have 
participated in some of the efforts.  RB Thompson stated that T. Willcockson is really 
coming through in her new position and he thanked her for her efforts. 

 In reference to D4, RB Thompson stated that as a resident observing the expansion of Niko’s 
it has been an excellent upgrade to the previous facilities there.  He stated that he loves the 
fact that Niko is really looking at the aesthetics of the place as well as the utilitarian 
approach.  Mayor Sager thanked Niko for his investment in the City of Woodstock.  He 
expressed his gratefulness for Niko’s dedication to the community and his cooperation when 
forwarding various events, which have been well received.  Mayor Sager stated that he is 
supportive of it and is pleased with the suggested improvements. 
 

 A.       MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
            February 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
  
 B.       WARRANTS:   3605      3606   MFT #532    

 
 C. MINUTES AND REPORTS:  

 Opera House Advisory Commission - 2013 Year Report 
            Police Department Report – January 2014 
 Transportation Commission Minutes – January 15, 2014 



Woodstock City Council 
3/4/14 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 Historic Preservation Commission Minutes – January 27, 2014 
  

D. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 19 
 

1. Board and Commission Appointment – Economic Development         Commission – 

Approval of the nomination of Ryan O’Connor to the Economic Development 
Commission. 
 

2. Ryder’s Woods Property Grant Proposal - Adoption of Resolution 14-R-04 
authorizing application to the 2014 ComEd Green Region Program for the Ryder’s 
Woods Final Stage Habitat Restoration Project. 

 

3. Liquor Amendment – BYOB License – Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-19                                                    
amending Title 3, Chapter 3, Liquor Control, of the Woodstock City                                                   
Code, creating a third classification of BYOB Permit, the BYOB Non-                                                
Restaurant Permit. 

 
4.   Zoning Variation – 1040 Lake Avenue – Adoption of Ordinance 14-O-20 varying 

Section 7A.3C of the Unified Development Ordinance to allow the construction of two 
building additions at 1040 Lake Avenue. 

 

5. Award of Contract – Hill Street Water Tower Improvements –                               
Approval of an award of contract for Hill Street Water Tower                                     
Improvements to Water Tower Clean & Coat for an amount not to exceed $27,000. 

 

6.   Purchase – Police Vehicles – Approval to purchase four replacement vehicles for the 
City of Woodstock Police Department for a total price not to exceed $111,000. 

 

 A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, J. 
 Starzynski, RB Thompson. Nays: None. Absentees: M. Turner. Abstentions: None. Motion 
 carried. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
           7. Quarterly Financial Reports Transmittal of the Third Quarter Financial Reports for  
    the City of Woodstock. 
                               a.) Revenues & Expenditures Report 
                               b.) Investment Report 
 

RB Thompson stated that they have had a telecommunications tax for quite awhile, but noted 
that it appears to be waning a little bit.  He questioned if now that we don’t have as many 
land based phones if there is a difference with the taxing of telecommunications.   
 
P. Christensen stated that it is a concern of theirs and advised that they believe the problem is 
generally the lack of landlines and also people moving over to a VoIP based systems which 
don’t bring in the same amount of taxes.  He advised that it is on their radar to explore.  He 
stated that people are moving over to cell phones so it was thought that it would come back 
and transfer land lines over to the cell phones, but it isn’t doing that.  He stated that one of the 
questions is if they are getting everyone and he referenced the unincorporated corporate 
problem.  He advised that they also want to look into the issue of data and whether data is 



Woodstock City Council 
3/4/14 

Page 4 of 5 
 

subject to the tax also.  He noted that it is on their radar to make sure the City is getting the 
money they are properly due. 
 
RB Thompson stated that the color throughout the document really enhanced it and Council 
agreed. Mayor Sager expressed appreciation for Paul and Roscoe’s efforts. 

 
 8.   Budget Workshop – Scheduling of Budget Workshop.  

 Mayor Sager stated that the public hearing will be held on April 1st so they are looking to 
 have the workshop somewhere between the 1st and the 15th.  The consensus was to try to 
 meet on Friday, April 11, 2014 in the afternoon.  Mayor Sager advised that the specific 
 start time will be sent out.  He advised that it is an open, public meeting.  He stated that 
 the public hearing associated with the budget will be during the regular City Council 
 meeting on April 1, 2014 and then they will look to finalize the budget for approval at the 
 regular City Council meeting on April 15, 2014.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

Motion by J. Starzynski, second by M. Saladin, to adjourn to Executive Session for the purpose of 
discussing: 
 

 Collective Bargaining (Open Meetings Act: 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(2) 

 Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their 
 representatives,  or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of 
 employees.   
 
 Collective Bargaining   
  

 Personnel (Open Meetings Act: 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 

 The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of                    
  specific employees of the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint                         
  lodged against an employee to determine its validity.  

 
A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, J. Starzynski, RB 
Thompson. Nays: None. Absentees: M. Turner. Abstentions: None. Motion  carried. 
 
The Woodstock City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 7:30 PM. 
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

The City Council returned to Open Session at 8:52 PM.  A roll call was taken. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: RB Thompson, Maureen Larson, Julie Dillon, Mark Saladin, 
Mayor Brian Sager, Joseph Starzynski 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Michael Turner 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Human Resource 
Director Deb Schober, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, Chief of Police Robert Lowen 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 



Woodstock City Council 
3/4/14 

Page 5 of 5 
 

M. Saladin questioned the targeted development item and Mayor Sager advised that it is for purposes 
of discussion regarding Council working with the Plan Commission and the Economic Development 
Commission to think about targeted development such as the area by the old Farm and Fleet. 
 
RB Thompson stated that he thinks it is an appropriate time to relook at home rule.  He referenced 
the opening of Ryland Homes and the possibility of Sweetwater being built out completely by this 
year or next year.  He thinks there is going to be an expansion of the population.  He advised 
coupling that with the possibility of annexing Todd’s Woods, the reality is we could come up with 
300 people.  He stated that if they start the process to get an official census taken, keeping in mind 
that the quicker it is done the more money they will have from the State per capita which will start 
covering the cost of the census. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that Staff has been looking at it, noting that City Manager has requested from 
Development to identify where we are right now.  He advised that they evaluated the Maples on 
Country Club, the Sonatas, Sweetwater and the Ponds to make a determination as to whether we are 
there yet.  He advised that the consensus conclusion was that we are not there yet; however, everyone 
agrees that as we look to the additional development and infill that RB Thompson referenced, as well 
as some others and also the annexation issue, which hasn’t been discussed yet, we believe that within 
the next year to year and a half there will likely be an adequate number of additional residents.    He 
stated that the plan is to continue to monitor it and forward a recommendation to Council for a 
special census by 2015.  He advised that if they are able to do it successfully, it will give us five 
years on the current decennial census.  
 
RB Thompson stated that he attended the MCCG meeting where the speakers talked about social 
media.  He stated that he would like to be more informed as to where the City is in regards to social 
media.  D. Schober reported that because she bought concert tickets she got an email from the 
Village of Rosemont with links to shopping and dining in the area; it expresses the power of social 
media.  Mayor Sager stated that RB Thompson’s point of interest is that Council would like an 
update noting that when they talk more about the potential for marketing it is in important element.  
He agreed that it should be a topic for a future discussion. 
 
Mayor Sager stated that for the March 18th meeting there might be an update for Council on the plans 
for a community event. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by M. Saladin, second by M. Larson, to adjourn the regular meeting of the City Council to 
the next Regular Meeting on March 18, 2014. Ayes: J. Dillon, M. Larson, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, 
J. Starzynski, RB Thompson. Nays: None. Absentees: M. Turner. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:04 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell  
City Clerk 



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

March 4, 2014 
City Council Chambers 

 
The Executive Session of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at by Mayor Brian 
Sager at 7:30 PM on Tuesday, March 4, 2014 in Council Chambers at Woodstock City Hall. 
 
A roll call was taken. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: RB Thompson, Maureen Larson, Julie Dillon, Mark 
Saladin, Mayor Brian Sager, Joseph Starzynski 
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Michael Turner 
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Ruth Schlossberg, Human 
Resource Director Deb Schober, Finance Director Paul Christensen, Director of Public Works Paul 
Ruscko, Chief of Police Robert Lowen 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell, Attorney Jim Baird 
 
DISCUSSION: 

 

Collective Bargaining (Open Meetings Act: 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(2) 
Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their representatives,  or 

 deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of employees. 
 
Collective Bargaining 
The City Council discussed a matter of collective bargaining regarding Local 150.  
 
J. Baird and P. Christensen left chambers at 8:35 PM. 
 
Personnel (Open Meetings Act: 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific employees 

 of the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee to determine 
 its validity.  

 
The City Council discussed a personnel issue.  
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 

Motion by J. Starzynski, second by M. Larson, to adjourn from Executive Session and return to 
Open Session. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, J. 
Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: M. Turner. Abstentions: None. Motion carried.   
 
Council adjourned to Open Session at 8:52 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell - City Clerk 

































































































 
CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

November 12, 2013 

City Council Chambers 
 
The special meeting of the Woodstock Parks and Recreation Commission was called to order at 7:03        
PM by Chairman Mike McCleary on Tuesday, November 12, 2013.   
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Laurel Sheahan, Steve Erwin, Chairman Mike McCleary 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:  Nic Kearfott 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Parks Supervisor Bob Hoadley 
 

OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 
 
C. FLOOR DISCUSSION: 

 

1. Public comments User Groups 
Alex Benitez, former President of Woodstock Girls Softball League, introduced Alissa 
Benedict who is the new President of WGSL.  He thanked the Commission for their 
cooperation over the last two years and stated that WGSL would like to continue and 
possibly expand the cooperation. 
 
Peter Riis, Woodstock Girls Softball League, referenced the master plan for the parks and 
stated that he knows it is a guideline but he believes they need direction on some of the 
items.  He advised that the plan hasn’t been updated in a while and noted that there are 
some items that may be on the high side.  He stated that WGSL can do certain things but 
at some point, like lighting the fields, it is beyond what they can do as an organization.   
 
P. Riis stated that he would like to sit down to review the plan and talk about which 
priorities should be set.  He advised that the items don’t have hard fast deadlines, but a lot 
of the items are due 2013 – 2018.  He stated that they aren’t hard and fast budget items, 
but they do need to be prioritized so WGSL can figure out what they can do.  He stated 
that if there is any other money available such as grants, which aren’t listed in the master 
plan as a funding source.  He advised that MLB does have grants available to both 
baseball and softball so it might be something to pursue.   
 
P. Riis reported that WGSL has done two fields so far and they are in the process of 
doing Field 3.  He advised that they are looking at lighting for one more field but not all 
the fields because it is cost prohibitive.  He stated that Field 6 can be lit by using some of 
the standards that are already in place for Roskie Field and Field 4. He stated that some of 
the things have already been accomplished in the master plan but some of them will be 
coming up in the next four years.  He stated that WGSL needs to make some plans for 
financing.  He advised that some of the high cost items in the plan will be out of their 
reach so they will need to work together to find the money for the projects. 
 
M. McCleary advised that the CIP process is just beginning which is when City Council 
outlines capital improvement projects for the entire city for the next five years.  P. Riis 
stated that he is referring to the master plan for the parks.  He advised that he knows that 
there are a lot of priorities in the city and some of things out there right now might sound 
good but in reality they aren’t going to happen and WGSL would like to be involved if 



Parks and Recreation Commission 
11/12/13 

Page 2 of 6 
 

the plan is revised.  He stated that when they consolidated their operations over at Bates, 
it allowed the City to run more programs out at Emricson for the adult leagues. 
 
P. Riis stated that District 200 has moved the Woodstock High School softball program 
from Emricson to Bates and noted that one of the reasons they came to Bates was the fact 
that the field conditions, as WGSL, rebuilds the fields is much better than at Emricson.  
He noted that redoing some of the fields at Emricson is part of the master plan.   He 
stated that it would be a joint conversation between the District 200, the City and WGSL 
and other user organizations involved with the fields.   
 
M. McCleary advised that both documents work hand-in-hand.  P. Riis stated that they 
might need to do a priority on each of the projects for all user groups so the City can have 
some direction on what they should be ranking out on their budget. 
 
The user groups in attendance introduced themselves.  Woodstock Girls Softball League: 
Kyle Schultz, Alissa Benedict, Eric Thurow, Keith Benedict. Woodstock Little 
League/Woodstock Avalanche: Will McKay  
 

2. Commission Member comments for any item not on the agenda 
S. Erwin reported that he read in the paper that the dog park is going to open sometime 
this month or next month.  B. Hoadley stated that he is not aware of it.  M. McCleary 
advised that there is a big sign on the corner that says Bull Valley Dog Park and noted 
that he thought it was a joint venture; however, it seems that the City of Woodstock was 
left off the sign.  He stated that he thought it was a 50/50 venture.   
 
B. Hoadley stated that he could not affirm that and advised that they had a few meetings 
on it as a joint effort.  He stated that he heard that the City of Woodstock residents would 
get a fee reduction so there are some incentives to the city residents along with the 
monetary dollars that went into the project.  He advised that he hasn’t received anything 
on maintenance.  M. McCleary stated that the property is pretty much fenced in and they 
have a big banner saying “opening soon.”  He advised that it looks like the entrance is 
off of County Club Road.  

 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
Motion by L. Sheahan, second by S. Erwin to approve the September 24, 2013 Woodstock Parks & 
Recreation Commission Minutes with the following corrections: 
 
S. Erwin:  Page 2, 4th paragraph, should read as “D. Zinnen advised that they are in the process…” 
       Page 2, 5th paragraph, should read as “He advised that there have been lost revenues …” 
 
Ayes: L. Sheahan, S. Erwin, M. McCleary. Nays: None. Absentees: N. Kearfott. Abstentions: None. 
Motion carried 
 

2. Transmittals:  The following items have been transmitted to the Commission for information and 
there is no discussion expected or action recommended. 

1. Recreation Department Report for October 2013 
2. Parks Division Report for October 2013 
3. City Council Minutes of Haunted House 

L. Sheahan asked the state of the Square after the haunted house was removed.  B. Hoadley 



Parks and Recreation Commission 
11/12/13 

Page 3 of 6 
 

advised that it isn’t anything different than the Farmers Market on the west end; it’s down 
to dirt.  He advised that they will over-seed in the spring to get the grass in good shape for 
Fair Diddley.  He reported that NLD is donating the over-seeding for where the haunted 
house was located.  He stated that Tom Nierman is storing the panels for the haunted house 
in his shop for Family Alliance.  He advised that T. Nierman hasn’t given a time yet for 
when they are going to do the project.   
 
L. Sheahan questioned if the haunted house is something that will happen again and B. 
Hoadley advised that he does not know.  M. McCleary advised that it benefited Family 
Alliance and noted that the report stated that they were promoting exposure for the Old 
Courthouse, however, he doesn’t understand the link.  S. Erwin questioned if it made 
money and M. McCleary stated that it is probably too soon to know.   

 
3. Old Business 

1.   None 

 

4. New Business 

1. WGS Proposal for Renovations to Bates Park 
P. Riis reported that WGSL put in drainage and cut down the sightlines in the outfield to 
correct the flow of the water across the field, however, they are held up right now as the 
City is donating the soil mix.   He advised that because of the rain in the last few weeks 
they haven’t been able to get any delivers of soil.  He stated that once it is there, they will 
go back in and re-grade the field which is being done through their own funds and through 
volunteer work.  He advised that this is the second field that WGSL has rebuilt.   
 
P. Riis reported that have talked to B. Hoadley in regards to maintenance that needs to be 
done on the fields.  He reported that there are other issues they need to find the time and 
money for which goes back to the City’s priorities for the parks.  He stated that WGSL is 
very appreciative of B. Hoadley and his crew.  He reported that WGSL has received lots of 
compliments when they have tournaments.   He stated that it is a tribute to B. Hoadley’s 
crew and the cooperation between WGSL and the City of Woodstock.   

 
P. Riis stated that WGSL gave an estimate of $2,500 and noted that they have come before 
the Commission when WGSL was putting up the batting cage to ask for a waiver of the 
fees.  He advised that once they have the final cost on the renovations, they will come back 
probably in the spring to ask for an extension on the waiver. 
 

2. WLL Proposal for Renovations at Merryman Fields  
 

W. McKay stated that they were approached by a local resident about doing a seeding 
project out at Merryman.  He reported that the scope of the plan is to lay down some 
dormant seed, fertilizer and water to get the seed down before next spring.  He advised that 
the second part of the project, which will require input from the City Engineer, is working 
on drainage between Fields 5 & 6 and behind Fields 3 & 4 to take some of the water that 
sits behind the fields back to the retention pond.  W. McKay stated that the resident also 
offered to fund a score board for Field 5.  He advised that WLL may come before the 
Commission in the spring to ask for a waiver.  He stated that WLL’s waiver was through 
the agreement with the Commission and the City of Woodstock based on their expenses 
and work done at Sullivan.   



Parks and Recreation Commission 
11/12/13 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
M. McCleary questioned what percentage of WLL games are played at Merryman and W. 
McKay advised that they play their 13 & 14 year-old games at Roskie over Merryman 7 
and the majority of the 11 & 12 year-old are played at Merryman.   He advised that it is a 
50/50 split for the 7 & 10 years-old between Merryman and Sullivan.  He stated that in the 
fall they utilize Main A, Roskie and Sullivan.  M. McCleary questioned if the rest of the 
fields at Bates Park are primarily utilized by girls’ softball and WGLS advised that they are 
also used by the Heatwave.  
 
W. McKay stated that in the past WLL has been able to utilize Bates during the fall for 
practice, but the Heatwave has taken up more fields at Bates during the fall, which has 
posed a problem for WLL. In response to M. McCleary’s question, P. Riis advised that 
McHenry County Heatwave is a traveling team and noted that most of the membership is 
non-resident.  He stated that they have formed more teams and they are using more fields.  
W. McKay stated that Heatwave is a group that the Commission put on their list of 
approved user groups last year.   
 
M. McCleary questioned if it causes a conflict for the local teams.  P. Riis stated that they 
try to work with Parks and Rec too schedule around the nights they are out there and noted 
that they want the fields with the lights.  He advised that WGSL doesn’t typically run any 
night games until June.  L. Sheahan questioned if Heatwave uses fields in any of the other 
cities in the County.  P. Riis stated that they use some fields in McHenry Township.  L. 
Sheahan stated that Heatwave should have a lower priority in scheduling fields than WGSL 
and WLL.  P. Riis stated that as an approved user group they are all on equal footing.   

 
W. McKay stated that on the baseball side, WLL sits down with Mike Turner, President of 
Woodstock Lightening, and Alan Dunker to put together a master schedule that the 
practices are built off of.  He referenced P. Riis comment and affirmed that there are really 
good fields in Woodstock due to work done by B. Hoadley and his group and the planning 
done by the Commission and City Council.  He stated that there has been a lot of talk on 
the quality of Main A and reported that WLL hosted a state level tournament this past year 
and those from out of town talked about how great of a field it is.  He stated that when we 
slight Field A, it may or not deserve it based on the comments from other towns.  He 
thanked B. Hoadley and the Commission for their leadership and direction. 

 
B. Hoadley added to the WLL proposal that Fields 1 & 2 at Merryman are being used for 
the special needs Challenger Division on Sundays and noted that it is expanding.  He 
reported that it is something WLL started.   W. McKay stated that he would like to come 
and present the program to the Commission.   
 
B. Hoadley advised that the work on Merryman is outside the fields.  M. McCleary 
affirmed that it is the areas that they looked at on the tour.  B. Hoadley advised that along 
with the WLL proposal, Parks will still aerate and use their equipment to put pot ash down.  
He stated that the Parks staff can do it themselves but they aren’t full time and have other 
duties.  He stated that WGLS and WLL are two great groups in terms of donations and 
volunteers.  He stated that his staff really appreciates the work they do and for the good 
communication between them. 

 



Parks and Recreation Commission 
11/12/13 

Page 5 of 6 
 

M. McCleary stated that they had talked about doing an herbicide application for broadleaf 
weeds.  W. McKay stated that WLL has always talked about it but noted that their 
understating is that the City wants to stay as green as possible.  He advised that they 
understand that and noted that the fertilization that will be recommended will take care of a 
lot of the problems.  B. Hoadley stated that once you get healthy turf, that’s what keeps the 
weeds out.  He advised that with the retention ponds, it is groundwater contamination.  He 
stated that they do an herbicide once a year.  He stated that even the salt put on the roads 
affects the groundwater, which the employees are being educated on. He advised that the 
City has been green for quite a few years and noted that they are trying to educate the 
public as well.   
 
A. Benitez stated that they had 53 teams participate in the Woodstock Girls Softball All-
Star Tournament.  He reported that it was a pretty good success and noted that they got a 
lot of feedback on the fields.  He stated that if it gains popularity they are hoping to expand 
to some of the other fields and anticipates discussion on available fields.  He reported that 
at the tournament they sprayed for mosquitoes on their own so the players and parents 
could enjoy themselves.  He suggested discussion on possibly sharing funds in the future 
for spraying as well as any discussion on cutting down trees along the property line.   
 
L. Sheahan stated that WGSL and WLL should take priority even though the other ones are 
approved user groups.  She stated that it is her understanding that Woodstock residents take 
priority for field use and she thinks it needs to be revisited.  She stated hopefully it can be 
worked out with Parks & Rec during field usage discussions, but as the organizations grow 
then she thinks the Commission needs to revisit to make sure WGSL and WLL are getting 
the priority scheduling on the fields.  M. McCleary stated that it can be put on a future 
agenda.  W. McKay advised that the master schedule for baseball is put together in 
January.  He reiterated that their issue is fall and needing lights.   
 
B. Hoadley stated that USSSA will be having a weekend baseball tournament in April that 
will affect several fields.  He stated that they are hesitant locating it because of weather and 
what will happen to the fields before City of Woodstock teams start their year.  W. McKay 
advised that he talked to A. Dunker about having outside groups come in and noted that 
they stressed the importance of making sure that there is a positive impact for Woodstock 
by either having Woodstock teams participate in the tournament at a reduced cost or having 
the outside group pay the fair rate to utilize the fields.  He stated that the WLL Board was 
not okay with the outside group utilizing the fields before the user groups have a chance to 
use them.  The group discussed the tournament and use of the Woodstock fields.   
 
L. Sheahan stated that she likes the idea of the tournament and noted that Woodstock’s 
fields are very nice compared to a lot of other ones.  She believes it is a good financial 
impact on Woodstock because it brings business to the restaurants and hotels; there is big 
money in the travel weekends.  M. McCleary questioned if, for the Girls Softball 
tournament, a study was done to see how much money is brought into the municipality.  P. 
Riis stated that they know there is a benefit but it is hard to put a dollar amount on it.   
 
M. McCleary questioned if the Heatwave takes ownership of field maintenance or do they 
just come in and play. B. Hoadley advised that they just come in and play and referenced 
the good working relationship between his crew and WLL and WGSL for field 
maintenance.  M. McCleary commended WLL and WGSL for attending the meeting and 



Parks and Recreation Commission 
11/12/13 

Page 6 of 6 
 

stated that the notice went out to all of the user groups.   He stated that the people that take 
more ownership and have a more vested interest are present.  K. Schultz advised that he is 
representing Woodstock United as well.     
 
A. Benitez noted that Connie with Heatwave did contact him to ask what two days they can 
have at the fields. B. Hoadley stated that he can trend the numbers for the different groups 
with growth and reductions.  He reported that they prepped 1800 baseball and softball 
games and noted that the practices are worse on the fields than the games.  He stated that if 
you average it out, it is a tremendous amount of field usage and noted that practices do 
affect the field quality.  He advised that it is something that he needs to address more this 
year.  He reported that they took some fields out for a few weeks and he believes it is 
something we need to do for some of the other fields.   

 
5. Future Agenda Items 

1. Tentative agenda items identified by Administration 
 a. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
  

2. Requested by Commission:  Any member may suggest an item to be considered by the 
 Commission at a future meeting, but must be approved by a majority of the    
 Commission to be included as a future agenda item. 
 a. Re-evaluation of the user groups priority 
 b. Contact Woodstock Thunder and invite them to attend 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by S. Erwin, second by L. Sheahan to adjourn the regular meeting of the Woodstock Parks 
and Recreation Commission. Ayes: L. Sheahan, S. Erwin, M. McCleary. Nays: None. Absentees: N. 
Kearfott.  Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:04 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
___________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell 
City Clerk 



 

 

       City of    
               

 
Offi ce  of  the May or                                                            815 .338 .4302  
Dr .  Br ian  Sager ,  Mayo r                                                            815 .334 .2269  
121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                                                              mayo r@woods tocki l . go v  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                            www.woodsto cki l . go v  
 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
for 

Woodstock City Council Meeting 

March 18 th, 2014 
 
 
TO:        Woodstock City Council 
 
FROM:   Mayor Brian Sager 
 
RE:        Nomination for Appointment to the Transportation Commission 

 
 
Colleagues: 
 
By way of this communication, I am nominating Jason Osborn to fill the vacancy on the 
Transportation Commission for the remainder of a term which expires on April 30, 2015.   
 
 
Respectfully, 

 
Brian Sager, Ph.D. 
Mayor 
 
 

 

http://www.woodstock-il.com/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19a



 

       City of    
               
Department of  Communi ty  and Economic Devel opment                                   phone  815 .338 .4305  
121  W. Calhoun St r ee t                                                        f ax  815 .334 .2267  
Woods tock ,  I l l ino i s  60098                                                                 commd evdept@woods tock i l .gov  
                                                        www.woodstock i l .gov  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

March 4, 2014 
 
TO:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
FROM: Nancy Baker, City Planner 
 

PROJECTING SIGN VARIATION—126 N. Benton Street, Liquid Blues 

 
Fred Bruchsaler, representing Liquid Blues, 126 N. Benton Street, will be appearing before the 
City Council seeking approval of a variation from the sign regulations of the City’s Unified 
Development Ordinance.    
 
Section 13.8.3 of the Unified Development Ordinance specifies that a projecting sign must 
extend from the wall at a 90 degree angle.  The variation, if granted, will allow the petitioner to 
install a projecting sign extending from the corner of the building utilizing the existing sign 
brackets.  The proposed signage complies with all other ordinance requirements. 
 
A public hearing was conducted by the Historic Preservation Commission on February 24, 2014.  
Although neighboring property owners were notified, no objectors were present at the hearing.   
 
Testimony at the hearing emphasized the historic precedent for a sign at this location and the 
desire of the business to improve the visibility of the business and the appearance of the 
property. 
 
After the conclusion of the hearing, the Commission voted 4 yes and 0 no to recommend 
approval of the variation.  A copy of the Community Development Report and the petitioner’s 
application is attached.  A copy of the minutes from the Historic Preservation Commission 
meeting is also provided. 
 
Based on the action of the Historic Preservation Commission and the evidence presented at 

the public hearing, it is recommended that the City Council approve Document Number 

_______________, consisting of an Ordinance authorizing a variation of Section 13.8.3 of 

the City of Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance to allow the installation of a 

projecting sign which extends from the corner of the building utilizing existing sign 

brackets. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19b

mamraen
Typewritten Text
1















 
 
 
 

WOODSTOCK HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SIGN VARIATION REPORT 

February 24, 2014 
 
 
PROJECT NAME: Liquid Blues Projecting Sign 
   126 N. Benton Street 
 
APPLICANT:   Fred Bruchsaler 
   On behalf of Liquid Blues Ltd. 
   126 N. Benton Street 
   Woodstock, IL 60098 
     
The petition for variation is attached.   The petition requests variations of Section 13.8.3, Projecting Signs,  of 
the Unified Development Ordinance to allow the installation of a projecting sign to extend from the corner of 
the building at a 45 degree angle, using the existing sign brackets.  The proposed sign is approximately 3 feet 
wide by 2.5 feet high. 
  
Section 13.8.3 of the UDO allows a single permanent projecting sign to be displayed at each public entrance to an 
establishment in a business or manufacturing zoning district which fronts on a public street.  If a business does not 
have a public entrance fronting a public street, a  projecting sign may be displayed on a wall which does front a 
public street. 
 
The Ordinance specifies that  a projecting sign shall have a maximum area of 9 square feet, must extend from the 
wall at a 90 degree angle, and must be pinned from the wall at least 6 inches.  At the signs outermost point, the sign 
must extend not more than 60 inches from the face of the wall to which it is attached.  The highest point on the sign 
must not extend above the windowsill of a second story window or a height of 16 feet, whichever is lower.  A 
projecting sign may be extended over a public sidewalk located in the public right-of-way, provided there is a 
separation of eight (8) feet between the sidewalk and the bottom of the sign. 
   
ANALYSIS: 
 
Section 13.11.3 of the Woodstock Sign Control Ordinance states that variations may be granted from the strict 
application of the terms and provisions of the regulations pertaining to signage in accordance with the 
provisions of this Ordinance.  The Historic Preservation Commission will conduct a public hearing and may 
recommend to the City Council a variation of the strict application of the terms and provisions of these 
regulations when it finds: 
 
1. That such variation is harmonious with the intent and purpose contained in Section 13.1, Statement of 

Purpose (below). 
 
2. That  there are practical difficulties or particular hardships in carrying out the strict letter of this 

Ordinance, or any part hereof, relating to the construction, alteration, maintenance, repair or 
remodeling of any sign.  Practical difficulties or particular hardships shall be proven by evidence 
demonstrating that (1) the plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances and (2) the variation, if 



granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality in which it is granted. 
 
3. That the variation will maintain and/or enhance the historical and architectural character of a site or 

structure. 
 
Statement of Purpose: 
  
The Sign Control Ordinance recognizes that outdoor signage places certain demands upon the attention of 
people passing by, which cannot easily be ignored, set aside, or turned off at will as may be done with other 
media. The Sign Control Ordinance also recognizes the need to protect the safety and welfare of the public; 
the need to protect and enhance property values and to provide a strong economic base by maintaining the 
attractive appearance and unique character of this community; the need to protect people from assaults on 
their privacy and sensibilities; and the need to provide adequate and effective identification and 
communication. The identity of businesses, the nature of the business or manufacturing activity on a site, as 
well as directional instructions to pedestrian and vehicular traffic on a site provide important information 
necessary for pleasant and effective commerce between the public and business establishments. 
 
In addition to the above findings,   Section 13.3 of the UDO establishes the following standards for 
properties in the Historic Downtown Business Preservation District: 
 
The Historic Downtown Business Preservation District has a unique and historic character.  Many of the 
buildings located within this district are of an architectural design popular in the late nineteenth century.  This 
historic character is considered to be one of the most important assets of the District and the City of 
Woodstock.  It is the intent of this Ordinance that this character be preserved.  It is not the intent of this 
Ordinance to limit the effectiveness of signs within this district but to allow messages to be conveyed more 
effectively and, at the same time, to preserve the historic character of the Historic Downtown Business 
Preservation District.   
 
In addition to the regulations contained herein, signs located within the Historic Downtown Business 
Preservation District shall meet the following standards which are excerpted from the National Park Service’s 
Preservation Brief # 25:  The Preservation of Historic Signs: 
 
A. Signs should be viewed as part of an overall graphics system for the building.  They do not have to do 

all the "work" by themselves.  The building's form, name and outstanding features, both decorative 
and functional, also support the advertising function of a sign.  Signs should work with the building, 
rather than against it.  

 
B. New signs should respect the size, scale and design of the historic building.  Often features or details 

of the building will suggest a motif for new signs.  
 
C. Sign placement is important: new signs should not obscure significant features of the historic 

building. (Signs above a storefront should fit within the historic signboard, for example.)  
 
D. New signs should also respect neighboring buildings.  They should not shadow or overpower adjacent 

structures.  
 
E. Sign materials should be compatible with those of the historic building.  Materials characteristic of 

the building's period and style, used in contemporary designs, can form effective new signs.  
 
F. New signs should be attached to the building carefully, both to prevent damage to historic fabric, and 



to ensure the safety of pedestrians.  Fittings should penetrate mortar joints rather than brick, for 
example, and sign loads should be properly calculated and distributed.  

  
RECOMMENDATION: If the Historic Preservation Commission determines that the sign variations 
are justified, a motion should be made recommending variation of the Unified Development Ordinance, 
Section 13.8.3 to allow the installation of a new projecting sign utilizing the existing brackets at the corner of 
126 N. Benton. 



CITY OF WOODSTOCK 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

February 24, 2014 
ABRIDGED MINUTES 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock Historic Preservation Commission was called to order 
at 7:00 PM by Chairman Allen Stebbins on Monday, February 24, 2014 in Council Chambers 
at City Hall.  
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:   Jodie Kurtz-Osborne, Rodney Paglialong, 
Chairman Allen Stebbins, Erica Wilson 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:  None 

 
 STAFF PRESENT:  City Planner Nancy Baker 
 
 OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

  
II. PUBLIC COMMENT 
No comments from the public. 
 
III. GENERAL BUSINESS 

A. Sign Variation:  126 Benton Street—Public Hearing 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by R. Paglialong to open the Public Hearing at 7:04       
PM. Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. Wilson. Nays: 
None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Fred Bruchsaler, one of the owners of Liquid Blues, stated that they are trying to clean 
up the whole general area, which has been neglected in his opinion.  He reported that he 
has been coming to the City quite a bit asking how to do it correctly.  He advised that 
one of the problems that the business has had is no signage.  He stated that there is a 
sign on the back of the building but he really wants something on the front. 
 
F. Bruchsaler reported that there had always been a sign off the corner when it was 
Uncle Dan’s and noted that the brackets are already there.  He stated that to put another 
bracket system up there is thousands of dollars.  He wants to use what is up there which 
is solid steel and already has the electric.   He referenced the photos he submitted and 
pointed out the bracket which he will use to hang a two-sided sign that can be seen 
from all different directions from that corner.  He advised that it will be lit up since 
everything is there.   
 
F. Bruchsaler stated that the sign is supposed to be at 90 degrees from the building; 
however, the original bracket is 45 degrees noting that the prior sign hung there for 
seventeen years.  He is asking for a variance to put the sign back originally where it 
was historically and to help the business since you would be able to see it from all 
angles.  He stated that if he puts it at 90 degrees he loses a lot of exposure.  He advised 
that size of the sign meets all the codes and he stated that it be secured with chains. He 
stated that it will be constructed with outdoor material. 
 



Historic Preservation Commission 
2/24/14 

Page 2 of 2 
 

A. Stebbins questioned the sign material and F. Bruchsaler advised that it is an MDO 
which is made for outdoor use.  He stated that it is a pressed, composite board that is 
made with resins in it so it doesn’t break down from moisture.   
 
R. Paglialong questioned if the sign will be painted and F. Bruchsaler advised that it is 
an adhesive outdoor label that is UV protected.  He stated that the edges will be sealed 
with paint.  A. Stebbins questioned the lighting and F. Bruchsaler stated that right now 
there are halogen lights and noted that there might be a chance he may have to change 
them or replace them, but it won’t be different then what is there. 
 
E. Wilson stated that she likes the idea of the having the sign on the corner because 
otherwise you would need two signs which would make it look cluttered.  J. Kurtz-
Osborne thanked him for caring about his property. 

 
  A. Stebbins noted that no one was in attendance at the meeting for public comment and 
  advised that Certificates of Direct Notification were mailed to adjoining properties. 
 

Motion by R. Paglialong, second E. Wilson to close the public hearing at 7:12 P.M. 
Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. Wilson. Nays: None. 
Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by E. Wilson, second by J. Kurtz-Osborne to approve the sign variance request 
for 126 Benton Street.  Ayes: Chairman Stebbins, R. Paglialong, J. Kurtz-Osborne, E. 
Wilson. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

    
  



ORDINANCE NUMBER 14-O-_____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE VARYING SIGNAGE PROVISIONS OF 

 THE WOODSTOCK UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

FOR PROPERTY AT 126 N. BENTON STREET 
  

Be it ordained by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 
Illinois, as follows: 
 
Section One.   That Section 13.8.3, Projecting Signs, of the Unified Development Ordinance is 
varied to allow the installation of a projecting sign which utilizes the existing brackets on the 
building located at 126 N. Benton Street and legally described as follows: 
  

Part of Lot 1 in Block 7 of the Original Plat of the Village (now City) of Woodstock, 
formerly known and recorded as Centerville, and bounded and described as follows:  
Beginning at the northwest corner of said Lot 1; and running thence east along the north 
line thereof, 123 feet, more or less, to the northeast corner of said lot; thence South along 
the east line of said lot, 18 feet; thence west parallel with the north line of said lot, 123 
feet more or less, to the west line of said lot; thence north along said west line, 18 feet to 
the place of beginning, said block being located in and being a part of the Southeast 
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 44 North, Range 7 East of the 
Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat thereof recorded June 10, 1844 in Book D 
of Deeds, Page 201, in McHenry County, Illinois. 

   
Section Two.  That the Historic Preservation Commission on February 24, 2014 conducted a 
required public hearing on said variation and recommended to the City Council that the variation 
be approved. 
 

Section Three.  That this Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance Number 14-O-_________ and 
shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval as provided by law. 
 

Section Four.  Any Ordinances or parts thereof or any regulations in conflict with this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 

APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 
Illinois, this __________ day of ____________________, 2014. 
 
             
       ______________________________ 
                                          Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 
Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstentions: 
Absentees: 
 
Attest:         
________________________________   
City Clerk Dianne Mitchell    

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.1



 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

 

       City of    
               
 
Department of  Publ ic  Works                                                  phone 815 .338 . 6118  
326  Washin gton  St reet                                                      fax 815 .334 .226 3  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                                j van lan du yt@wood stocki l .go v  
                                               www.woodsto cki l . gov  
 
To:  Roscoe Stelford 
 
From:  Jeff Van Landuyt 
 
Re:  Safe Routes to School Grant Project 

Approval of Local Agency & Construction Engineering Services  

Agreements for Federal Participation 

 
Date:  March 11, 2014 
 
In 2011, the City was notified that we were approved for grant funding in the amount of 
$200,000 to construct new sidewalk on both sides of Dean Street between Kimball Avenue and 
Prairie Ridge Drive.  During the preliminary design of the project, the City learned that four 
properties within the project limits had no dedicated right-of-way with their private property 
lines terminating at the center line of Dean Street.  After working with property owners to get 
right-of-way dedicated to the City for construction of sidewalk, the City was only successful in 
securing right-of-way on the west side of Dean Street.  As a result, the City is moving forward 
with the construction of sidewalk only on the west side of Dean Street.   
 
While the City Administration did attempt to secure the required right-of-way on the east side of 
Dean Street, one of the property owners refused to dedicate the property, and their compensation 
demands were deemed unrealistic and cost prohibitive.  The City Attorney’s Office is attempting 
to work with the property owner to reach a reasonable compromise so that this sidewalk could be 
included in a future grant submittal.  If the City Attorney’s Office is unable to reach a successful 
resolution, the City Administration will need to review with the City Council the priorities for 
identifying future “grant-eligible” sidewalks, and the development of a City policy for invoking 
the use of eminent domain to secure the required right-of-way.  The delays involved with the 
required due process, as well as budgetary funding would need to be factored into future 
planning. 
 
On a positive note, the federally-funded Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) grant awarded to the 
City is a 100% reimbursable grant administered through the Illinois Department of 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19c



Transportation (IDOT) with no local match.  Since learning of the grant award, the City has met 
with IDOT for a kickoff meeting and preliminary review of typical sidewalk sections.  Sidewalk 
design has been discussed with IDOT, comments were incorporated in the final design drawings, 
and the project is ready to go out to public bid.  Throughout this design and approval process, the 
City utilized the professional engineering services of consulting engineers, Hampton, Lenzini, 
and Renwick (HLR).  As we move forward, the next step in the approval process is the execution 
of the attached Local Agency Agreement. 
 
The accompanying document provides confirmation to both the City and IDOT that funding for 
the construction has been approved and is available.  Once signed by both parties, the City is 
assured that $200,000 of funds from the Federal Highway Authority will be allocated to pay for 
this sidewalk improvement project.    
 
Since this is a reimbursable grant, the City will need to finance the cost of the project.  After the 
project is completed and the City meets all of the requirements of the grant award, all funds to 
pay for sidewalk construction and construction engineering will be reimbursed to a maximum of 
$200,000.  It is estimated that this project will be completed with final costs anticipated to be no 
more than $175,000. 
 
The IDOT schedule, which must be followed for this project, assumes that the letting day will be 
April 25, 2014.  It is anticipated that construction will begin this summer (2014) sometime after 
school lets out.  As a result, all of the City’s costs should be incurred during FY14/15.  Funding 
has been included within the proposed FY14/15 Budget offset by the anticipated grant revenues. 
 
It is recommended that the attached Local Agency Agreement for Federal Participation for 

the Safe Routes to Schools project, identified as Document No. _______, be approved.  
 
Along with this Local Agency Agreement, the City needs to forward to IDOT, the Construction 
Engineering Services Agreement for Federal Participation document.  This is the formal 
document provided to IDOT to show that the Local Agency (City of Woodstock) and the 
Consultant (HLR) have an agreement for services rendered during the construction of the project.  
Therefore, it is also recommended that the City approve the attached Construction 

Engineering Services Agreement, identified as Document No. _____, for Federal 

Participation with HLR for services related to the construction of sidewalk on the west side 

of Dean Street between Kimball Avenue and Prairie Ridge Drive for an amount not-to-

exceed $20,837.40.  If approved, these construction engineering services would be administered 
during FY14/15 after bid letting and final approval from IDOT.   
 

 
c: Paul Ruscko 
 Doug Paulus, HLR 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
2

mamraen
Typewritten Text
3



mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.2











mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.3

















 
 
       City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334.2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                                                commdevdept@woodstocki l .com 

      www.woodstocki l .gov  
                                         

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
Date  March 6, 2014 
 
To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
From:  Nancy Baker, City Planner 
 
 
RE: CHANGE ORDERS 001, 002, and 003 FOR OLD COURTHOUSE CUPOLA 

RESTORATION 

 

Winter weather has limited progress on the Old Courthouse cupola restoration, however the 
contractor has been able to remove the flag pole, reframe the dome cap, replace the rotted 
decking on the cap, replace additional molding on the cap, remove the eight pilasters, capitals, 
and other trim pieces so that they could be replicated, and to generally investigate other 
conditions they expect to encounter. 
 
Unfortunately, as various parts of the cupola are removed and examined, it is apparent that the 
condition of the wood is even worse than expected.  It is necessary to replace the wood base as 
well and to strip paint from the capitals to properly patch the wood and ensure paint adhesion for 
the future to prevent further water infiltration.  The additional work has been reviewed and 
recommended by Gary W. Anderson, Architects. 
 
This additional work is included in Change Orders 001, 002, and 003 and totals $15,677.  The 
revisions were not anticipated at the time of the award of the contract and are for work that will 
be completed within the original scope of the contract.  The additional items are necessary for 
the completion of the project and it is in the best interest of the City to approve the Change Order 
documents. 
  
Therefore, it is recommended that the attached Resolution identified as Document No. 

____________, authorizing Change Orders 001, 002, and 003 be approved, resulting in an 

increase to the contract of $15,677. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19d

mamraen
Typewritten Text
4



RESOLUTION NO. 14-R-_____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDERS 001, 002, AND 003  IN THE CONTRACT 

FOR THE OLD COURTHOUSE CUPOLA AND ROOF RESTORATION 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, on October 
15, 2013 authorized the Mayor and Clerk to enter into a contract (the “Contract”) with Renaissance 
Restoration, Inc. (the “Contractor”) that exceeded $10,000, and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Contract, the Contractor agreed to provide all labor, 
equipment, materials, supplies, and related items for the restoration of the Old Courthouse cupola, dome 
and roof; and 

 WHEREAS, since the Contract was approved by the City Council, the scope of services to be 
provided by the Contractor needs to be revised, necessitating change orders in the Contract; and 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor is to make the changes requested by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to 720ILCS 5/33E-9, Change Orders, the City Council finds (1) the 
circumstances said to necessitate the change in performance were not reasonably foreseeable at the time 
the Agreement was entered; and (2) the change is germane to the original Agreement as signed, and (3) 
the change order is in the best interest of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, 720 ILCS 5/33E-9, requires that any change order be made in writing. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, 
McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 That the provisions outlined in the attached change orders No. 001, 002, and 003 are hereby 
approved and the City Manager is authorized to execute the Change Orders incorporating said proposals. 

 Passed this _____ day of _______________, 2014 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstentions: 
Absentees: 
        ______________________________ 
         Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.4









       City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334.2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                                                commdevdept@woodstocki l .com 

      www.woodstocki l .gov  
                                         

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date  March 6, 2014 
 
To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
From:  Nancy Baker, City Planner 
 
RE:  CHANGE ORDER FOR INSTALLATION OF CRENELLATION  

ON OLD COURTHOUSE 

    
The turret-like feature at the top of the Old Courthouse dome contains a flat roof with a hatch 
door providing access to the very top of the dome.  For decades, water ran down the flagpole to 
this roof and then continued down the flagpole into the dome itself.  The flagpole was not an 
original feature of the courthouse and the Historic Preservation Commission and City Council 
agreed to the removal of the flagpole to eliminate this problem.  The contract for the dome 
restoration includes the installation of a new “Bilco door” that will allow access but will also 
keep rain and snow out of the interior. 
 
Modification of the dome roof and hatch structural support was necessary due to the condition of 
the structure and the new hatch door will project up above the roof, rather than being flush with 
the roof.  This will prevent further water infiltration; however, the hatch may be visible from 
certain approaches. 
 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19e



 
Early photos of the old courthouse reveal a decorative “crenellation” at the top of the dome.  This 
feature is still evident in photos from 1881, even after the railing was removed.  The 1895 
Woodstock Illustrated shows a cupola feature above the dome but it was removed by 1905, and 
has apparently remained unchanged ever since. 
 
Restoration (replication) of the original crenellation will not only screen the Bilco door, but also 
give the top of the structure a more finished appearance.  The proposed crenellation will 
duplicate the appearance of the original as much as possible based on photographic evidence.  A 
detail of the proposed work is attached.  
 
A Certificate of Appropriateness to install the proposed crenellation was unanimously approved 
by the Historic Preservation Commission on February 24, 2014.   
 

 

 



 

  

Renaissance Restoration, general contractor for the courthouse cupola and roof restoration will 
supply the labor, materials, and equipment to install the copper crenellation for the sum of 
$3960.  Installation at a later date would be significantly more expensive because the site is 
already setup for the restoration of other dome and roof features and there will be no additional 
expenses for scaffolding or a lift. 

If the City Council agrees that the installation of a copper crenellation is appropriate, it is 

recommended that the attached Resolution identified as Document #:_______ authorizing a 

change order to the contract for the Old Courthouse cupola and roof restoration be 

approved. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
5



 



RESOLUTION NO. 14-R-_____ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CHANGE ORDER 004 IN THE CONTRACT FOR THE OLD 

COURTHOUSE CUPOLA AND ROOF RESTORATION 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, on October 
15, 2013 authorized the Mayor and Clerk to enter into a contract (the “Contract”) with Renaissance 
Restoration, Inc. (the “Contractor”) that exceeded $10,000, and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Contract, the Contractor agreed to provide all labor, 
equipment, materials, supplies, and related items for the restoration of the Old Courthouse cupola, dome 
and roof; and 

 WHEREAS, since the Contract was approved by the City Council, the scope of services to be 
provided by the Contractor needs to be revised, necessitating a change order in the Contract; and 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor is to make the changes requested by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to 720ILCS 5/33E-9, Change Orders, the City Council finds (1) the 
circumstances said to necessitate the change in performance were not reasonably foreseeable at the time 
the Agreement was entered; and (2) the change is germane to the original Agreement as signed, and (3) 
the change order is in the best interest of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, 720 ILCS 5/33E-9, requires that any change order be made in writing. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, 
McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 That the provisions outlined in the attached change order No. 004 is hereby approved and the City 
Manager is authorized to execute the Change Order incorporating said proposal. 

 Passed this _____ day of _______________, 2014 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstentions: 
Absentees: 
        ______________________________ 
         Brian Sager, Ph.D., Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.5





       City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development                     phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                               fax  815.334.2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                                                commdevdept@woodstocki l .com 

      www.woodstocki l .gov  
                                         

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date  March 6, 2014 
 
To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
From:  Nancy Baker, City Planner 

 
 
 
RE: WAIVER OF REQUIREMENT FOR COMPETIVE BIDS AND AWARD OF 

CONTRACT FOR INSTALLATION OF LIGHTNING PROTECTION ON OLD 

COURTHOUSE 

 

The original bid for the restoration of the Old Courthouse cupola and roof contained several 
alternates including lightning protection.  The bid plans did not include specifications for the 
lightning protection because every lightning protection company designs a different system.  
Instead, each bidder provided a price for a “design/build” system.   
 
Renaissance Restoration’s bid price for the lightning protection alternate was $99,300—six times 
higher than the other two bidders (bids of $16,000 and $16,500) and the lightning protection 
alternate was not included in the final bid award authorized at the October 15, 2013 City Council 
meeting.  It was noted in the staff report that lightning protection would be revisited and awarded 
at a later date. 
 
Renaissance Restoration has provided a proposal for a different lightning protection system at a 
cost of $19,464.  We believe this is the best option because the lightning protection subcontractor 
will be able to utilize the scaffolding and lift that are already onsite and the work will be 
coordinated by the general contractor. 
 
In light of the significant savings offered by utilizing the current roofing contractor’s scaffolding, 
it is in the best interest of the City to waive the competitive bid process.  The City’s architect has 
indicated that the price is competitive for the work being performed. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that the City Council waive the requirement for competitive 

bids and authorize a contract with Renaissance Restoration for the installation of lightning 

protection at the Old McHenry County Courthouse for a total price of $19,464.00. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19f



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    
               

Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  
3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  
www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

To:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
From:  Paul R. Ruscko, Public Works Director 
 
Re: Approval to Waive Requirement for Competitive Bids and Acceptance of 

Proposal for the Rehabilitation of Water Supply Well #11 

 

Date: March 13, 2014 
 
At the February 4, 2014 City Council Meeting, Council approved a proposal from Layne 
Christensen Company to provide labor, equipment and miscellaneous materials required to pull, 
inspect, and reinstall Well #11 for a total estimated cost not to exceed $23,225.  This inspection 
was requested because over the course of a month, production from this well had dropped from 
750 gallons per minute (gpm) to approximately 550 gpm.   
 
The well pump has been pulled and inspected and the well has been televised.  We have found 
issues with both the well pump and the well.  Extensive pitting and cracking was found on the 
bowl assembly of the well pump.  The pitting and cracking is beyond repair, so a new bowl 
assembly is required.  The well pump motor is in fair condition, so only standard servicing is 
required.  These repairs will get the well pump back into good working order, but won’t fully 
address the drop in water production from the well.  The proposed cost for the additional well 
pump and motor repairs is $15,499. 
 
The televised inspection of the well did not identify any issues with the well casing nor was 
notable plugging found on the well screen.  However, additional pumping tests on the well have 
identified that there is plugging in the gravel pack that is located immediately around the well 
screen and/or in the geological formation beyond the gravel pack.  We completed a minimal 
amount of well redevelopment work, repeated the pumping tests, and saw improvement in 
production.  (The cost of the minimal redevelopment work and additional pumping tests is 
$3,500.)  This confirmed that the plugging could be reduced by additional well redevelopment 
work.  Layne Christensen Company is recommending and staff concurs with utilizing an 
aggressive well redevelopment procedure due to the extent of the plugging.  As is the case with 
any well rehabilitation work, there are no guarantees as to the level of success that can be 
attained.  However, this is a very aggressive scope of work, which should provide the best means 
for success.  
 
The quality of services provided for the inspection and maintenance of these water supply wells 
is critical to the health of the community and our ability to provide an uninterrupted water 
supply.  Layne Christensen Company has constructed and installed all of the City’s six water 
supply wells, and they have performed almost all of the service and maintenance work in the 
past.  Their response time and quality of work has been excellent and has resulted in a water 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19g



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

supply system with few problems or failures.  Well #11 is a submersible Byron Jackson model, 
and Layne Christensen is the exclusive Byron Jackson dealer in northern Illinois.  As such, they 
stock all of the materials that are needed for the repair of this well pump which will limit the 
period that this well pump will be down for maintenance.  Once approved, this additional work 
will begin immediately so that its does not affect the City’s ability to meet seasonal water 
demands. 
 
The aggressive well rehabilitation work described in the attached proposal includes the cost to 
pull the well equipment, complete the well redevelopment work, chemically treat the well, 
reinstall the well equipment to a greater depth, final testing, disinfecting, and demobilization.  
The price as quoted includes all labor, equipment, and material necessary to complete the 
aforementioned activities.  The estimated cost provided by Layne Christensen Company for this 
work is quoted at $35,972. 
 
 Pump & Motor Repairs: $15,499 
 Minimal Redevelopment & Testing: 3,500 
 Aggressive Rehabilitation & Testing: 35,972 
 TOTAL: $54,971 
 
Funding for these repairs is critical and cannot be delayed.  This well needs to be returned to 
service in time for the spring/summer season.  The City Administration will attempt to first 
utilize savings from other projects as well as delay anticipated water main replacements to 
provide for this unbudgeted expense.  However, if sufficient savings cannot be identified, 
available fund balance will need to be utilized. 
 
As previously mentioned, Layne Christensen is the exclusive dealer in northern Illinois for this 
brand of pumps and has extensive experience working on and maintaining the City’s wells.  To 
award this work directly to Layne Christensen will require the City Council to waive the 
competitive-bid requirements, which will necessitate a super majority vote of the Corporate 
Authorities holding office.  Therefore, five affirmative votes will be required to authorize the 
waiver of competitive bids. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that the requirement for competitive bids be waived and that 

the City approve the proposal from Layne Christensen Company to provide labor, 

equipment and miscellaneous materials required to rehabilitate Well #11 (as described in 

their proposal dated March 7, 2014) along with pump & motor repairs and minimal 

redevelopment & testing for a total estimated cost not to exceed $54,971. 
 
 
c: Will Smith 
 Layne Christensen Company 
 

rstelford
Approved







 

       City of    
               
 
Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  
Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  C i ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  
121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  
 
 
 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
CC:  Department Directors 
 
FROM: Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 
 
DATE:  March 11, 2014 
 
RE:  Transmittal of the FY14/15 Annual Budget 

 
 
The FY14/15 Budget Transmittal Letter and Annual Budget will be transmitted to you on 
Tuesday, March 18th under separate cover via the Dropbox. 
 
Council will recall that two enhancements were made to the budget document last year which 
proved useful and, therefore, have been included in the FY14/15 budget.  The document has been 
indexed so that a user needs only to “click” on a topic in the Table of Contents to be taken to the 
first page of that section of the Budget.  In addition, the document is now searchable should a 
user wish to find a reference, or all references, to a certain topic.  Of course, as in the past, the 
Budget has been bookmarked, with the bookmarks appearing to the left. 
 
The FY14/15 Budget is again balanced and does not incorporate the allowed cost of living 
increase in the extension of the property tax levy. 
 
The transmittal of the FY14/15 Budget at Tuesday evening’s Council meeting is consistent with 
the Budget Schedule prepared and provided to the City Council in January.  In order to comply 
with State statute and City Code, the Budget Public Hearing is scheduled for the Council meeting 
on April 1st with the adoption of the FY14/15 Budget scheduled for the April 15th regularly-
scheduled City Council meeting.  In between the Budget Public Hearing and the adoption of the 
Budget, the Mayor and City Council historically have held a Budget Workshop to review and 
discuss the Budget.  At the March 4th City Council meeting, it was the consensus that this year’s 
Workshop will be held on Friday, April 11th beginning at 1:30PM in the Council Chambers.   
 
If you have any questions in the interim, please feel free to contact me. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19h



 

 

       City of    
               
 
Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  
Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  
121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  
Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Cindy Smiley, Executive Assistant 
 
DATE:  March 10, 2014 
 
RE:  Community Event 
 
Council will recall that at its January 21, 2014 meeting, conceptual approval was given for a new 
community celebration to be held July 18th – 20th in Emricson Park.  This memo will serve as an update 
on the planning thus far for the event. 
 
It is hoped that this event will bring the community (and, of course, visitors) together in a celebration of 
summer and our beautiful city park, similar to the family picnics one would have seen in a bygone era.  
With this in mind and after discussion among City staff and representatives from the Gavers Community 
Cancer Foundation (GCCF), it was decided that this event would be tentatively known as “Woodstock 
Celebrates Summer in the Park.”  It was felt that this not only best describes “what” the event is, but also 
would evoke the warm, hometown feel that we wish to project.   
 
OVERVIEW 

Friday, July 18th 
The event will kick-off on Friday evening with a free concert under the “big tent” featuring the popular 
group Chasin’ Mason.  This Wisconsin-based group is “rooted in country and laced with rock and roll” 
and has appeared at Summerfest and the Wisconsin State Fair as well as around Wisconsin and Northern 
Illinois.  The beer garden, operated by the GCCF, will be open and food vendors will be invited to 
participate.  The event committee is in the process of identifying and securing an opening act.  The event 
would start at 7:00 PM and end by 11:00 PM. 
 
Saturday, July 19th 
While it was originally thought to have events going on in the parking lot between the aquatic center and 
the Bigelow Fields and also in the grassy areas surrounding the fields, as plans progressed it became 
obvious that this would be logistically impossible.  Consequently, Saturday will be a special day at 
Woodstock Waterworks featuring special events including games and entertainment.  This event will 
conclude with the facility closing at 4:00PM in anticipation of the GCCF Barndance to be held in the big 
tent beginning at 5:00PM.  All other events that were originally planned for Saturday will be incorporated 
into Sunday’s activities. 
 
Sunday, July 20th  
Sunday will feature entertainment, food, fun, and activities for all ages beginning at Noon in the area of 
and under the big tent.  One area will be designated a “game” area, which will have the feel of an old-
fashioned fair with five or six game booths featuring games such as ring toss, milk bottle tumble, etc.  
This area will also feature three or four “bouncy-house type” structures, as well as various games 
conducted by the Recreation Department.  We may have “strolling” entertainment in this area such as 
jugglers and clowns.  It is also planned to feature fair-type food such as popcorn and snow cones. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
March 18, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 19i



 

 

Sunday’s entertainment will include musical acts, magic shows, and story-telling, etc. in the big tent.  
Depending upon the acts that we are able to secure, it is possible that two entertainment venues will be set 
up in the event area either to alternate acts or to accommodate both family and children’s entertainment.  
It is hoped that we can also make bingo available to those who wish to participate in that activity. 
 
As it is hoped that this will be true community event, not-for-profits and businesses will be invited to 
setup booths to provide activities and information regarding their organization or business. 
 
A Community Picnic featuring local food vendors is planned for Sunday as well.  While the vendors will 
be able to set their prices individually, they will also be requested to feature a meal at a set dollar amount 
(i.e., $2.50 per person) so that there is “something for everyone.”  Of course, event goers can bring their 
own picnics as well.  GCCF will again operate the beer garden. 
 
The event will conclude Sunday evening with a movie under the big tent complete with popcorn, candy, 
and soda. 
 
SPECIFICS 
As mentioned previously, Chasin’ Mason has been booked for Friday evening.  Many thanks to Steve 
Gavers for finding and booking this band.  Mr. Gavers is working on additional entertainment for Sunday.  
In addition, City staff is working to secure entertainment for Sunday also. 
 
RC Juggles & Company, the company that has been providing entertainment services for Movies in the 
Park for 8 years, has been booked for the day on Sunday.  In addition to making balloon animals, they 
also do magic, musical performances, juggling, fire-eating, and unicycle tricks. 
 
A handful of food vendors have already indicated their desire to participate and staff is in the process of 
developing a registration form for their use, which will identify their individual needs.  Letters will be 
sent to all restaurants/food vendors in Woodstock inviting them to participate.  In addition, news releases 
will be placed in the Woodstock Independent and the Northwest Herald describing the event and inviting 
interested vendors to contact the City for more information. 
 
City staff is in the process of ordering six professional carnival game booths and game equipment.  Not 
only will these colorful booths add to the ambience of the event, but they can be used year after year for 
this event as well as for other City events such as band concerts and the Lighting of the Square.  Opera 
House staff will make colorful signage for the booths. 
 
As you know, the two “M’s” – Money and Manpower – are crucial to a successful event and this will be 
no exception.   
 
Funding has been included within the proposed FY14/15 Community Events budget for this new 
community festival; and, as you will recall, at the January 21st meeting, Council also expressed support of 
using a portion of the video gaming proceeds to help fund this event.  In addition, while we have yet to 
identify a Fundraising Chairperson, it is hoped that we can organize a successful fundraising campaign to 
help offset a portion of the costs for this event. 
 
The City is very fortunate in having staff experienced in both the organization and logistics of running an 
event.  Staff members are chairing all committees with the exception of Fundraising, and using their 
experience and expertise in the areas of Recreation and Games, Security, Volunteer Coordination, Food, 
Entertainment, Publicity, and Logistics.  Monica Amraen, our Volunteer Chairperson, has identified 
several volunteer resources and will be contacting these groups in person wherever possible.  In addition, 
the City is also extremely fortunate to have many organizations who already are experienced in running 
successful events.  Happily, various event organizers associated with some of the largest and most 
successful events held in the city have offered their expertise in helping to organize the City’s event.   

rstelford
Approved


	March 18, 2014 City Council Agenda
	A. Floor Discussion: Purple Heart Resolution
	B. Minutes of Previous Meetings:
	March 4, 2014 Regular Meeting
	March 4, 2014 Executive Session
	C. Warrants:
	Warrant #3607
	Warrant #3608

	D. Minutes and Reports:
	Police Department Report -February 2014
	Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes - November 12, 2013

	E. Manager's Report No.19
	1. Board and Commission Appointment 
	2. Sign Variation - 126 N. Benton Street
	Doc.1

	3. Safe Routes to School Agreeements
	Doc.2
	Doc.3

	4. Change Order #1-#3- Old Courthouse
	Doc.4

	5. Change Order #4 - Old Courthouse
	Doc.5

	6. Award of Contract - Lightning Project
	7. Award of Contract - Well#11

	DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	8. Transmittal of FY14/15 Budget
	9. Community Event




